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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited):

LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
         
  September 30,    
  2007   December 31, 
  (Unaudited)   2006  

ASSETS         
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 7,989  $ 6,983 
Securities owned, at market value   1,831   204 
Receivable from clearing broker   25,782   24,851 
Receivables from other broker-dealers   3,581   4,249 
Exchange memberships owned, at historical cost   120   120 
NYSE Euronext common stock, not readily marketable   1,158   1,228 
Investment in fund manager   403   448 
Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements, net   669   706 
Restricted assets   315   1,398 
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $765 and $144   2,969   3,035 
Other assets   4,938   4,121 
         

Total assets  $ 49,755  $ 47,343 

         
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY         

         
Securities sold, but not yet purchased, at market value  $ 1,525  $ 2,037 
Accrued compensation   3,902   3,764 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   4,740   5,152 
Deferred rent credit   1,577   1,552 
Accrued interest to former parent   —   1,504 
Notes payable to former parent   —   5,000 
         

Total liabilities   11,744   19,009 
         
Shareholders’ equity:         

Preferred stock, $.0001 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized; none issued   —   — 
Common stock, $.0001 par value; 400,000,000 shares authorized; shares issued and

outstanding, 161,552,675 and 155,972,805   16   15 
Additional paid-in capital   143,229   132,346 
Accumulated deficit   (105,234)   (104,027)

         
Total shareholders’ equity   38,011   28,334 

         
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity  $ 49,755  $ 47,343 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

                 
    Three months ended   Nine months ended  
    September 30,   September 30,  
    2007   2006   2007   2006  
                 
Revenues:                 
                 

Commissions  $ 4,879  $ 2,913  $ 13,787  $ 12,569 
Principal transactions, net   1,832   2,996   14,405   5,557 
Investment banking fees   830   2,335   8,023   3,781 
Investment advisory fees   686   636   2,072   1,832 
Interest and dividends   627   708   1,943   2,045 
Syndications and underwritings   1,094   292   3,672   1,855 
Gain on NYSE merger transaction   —   —   —   4,859 
Realized and unrealized loss on NYSE

Euronext restricted common stock   —   —   —   (1,001)
Other   504   299   997   933 

                 
Total revenues   10,452   10,179   44,899   32,430 

Expenses:                 
                 

Compensation and benefits   7,238   6,343   28,164   18,174 
Non-cash compensation   1,715   303   4,439   1,444 
Brokerage, communication and clearance

fees.   930   669   2,796   2,094 
Rent and occupancy, net of sublease

revenues   433   424   1,180   1,547 
Professional services   670   802   2,680   1,708 
Interest   16   161   287   417 
Depreciation and amortization   333   177   918   505 
Loss on extinguishment of debt   —   —   1,833   — 
Other   1,330   716   3,763   2,511 

                 
Total expenses   12,665   9,595   46,060   28,400 

                 
Income (loss) before income taxes   (2,213)   584   (1,161)   4,030 
                 
Income tax expense (benefit)   (115)   14   46   53 
                 

Net income (loss)  $ (2,098)  $ 570  $ (1,207)  $ 3,977 

                 
Income (loss) per common share:                 

Basic  $ (0.01)  $ 0.00  $ (0.01)  $ 0.03 
                 

Diluted  $ (0.01)  $ 0.00  $ (0.01)  $ 0.03 
                 
Number of shares used in computation:                 

Basic   159,826,786   150,559,806   156,362,156   147,430,887 

                 
Diluted   159,826,786   154,120,951   156,362,156   150,536,840 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)
                     
          Additional        
  Common Stock   Paid-In   Accumulated    
  Shares   Amount   Capital   Deficit   Total  
 
Balance, December 31, 2006   155,972,805  $ 15  $132,346  $ (104,027)  $28,334 
                     
Issuance of shares of common stock under

employee stock purchase plan   159,565   —   359   —   359 
                     
Exercise of stock options, net of 400,702

shares tendered in payment of exercise
price and 355,355 options used in
cashless exercise   3,429,228   1   857   —    858 

                     
Shares acquired from an employee in

satisfaction of withholding taxes on
exercise of options   (521,711)   —   (1,122)   —   (1,122)

                     
Stock options granted to members of

former Advisory Board and consultants   —   —   368   —   368 
                     
Stock-based compensation to employees   —   —   4,071   —   4,071 
                     
Issuance of shares of common stock in

exchange for promissory notes payable
to former parent   2,777,778   —   6,833   —   6,833 

                     
Stock retired under stock repurchase plan   (264,990)   —   (483)   —   (483)
                     
Net loss   —   —   —   (1,207)   (1,207)
                     
Balance, September 30, 2007   161,552,675  $ 16  $143,229  $ (105,234)  $38,011 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)

         
  Nine months ended September 30,  
  2007   2006  
Cash flows from operating activities:         

Net income (loss)  $ (1,207)  $ 3,977 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities:         
Depreciation and amortization   225   501 
Amortization of deferred rent credit   25   11 
Amortization of intangible assets   621   4 
Amortization of investment in fund manager   73   5 
Non-cash compensation expense   4,439   1,444 
Accrued interest   228   378 
Loss on extinguishment of debt   1,833   — 
Gain on NYSE merger transaction   —   (4,859)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets   115   — 

         
Decrease (increase) in operating assets:         

Securities owned   (1,627)   1,743 
NYSE Euronext common stock, not readily marketable   70   4,499 
Receivable from clearing broker   (931)   2,061 
Receivable from other broker-dealers   668   (3,607)
Other assets   (844)   (564)

         
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:         

Securities sold, but not yet purchased   (512)   (8,852)
Accrued compensation   138   (502)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   (2,607)   (2,854)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   707   (6,615)
         
Cash flows from investing activities:         

Acquisition of relationships and customer accounts   (92)   (26)
Purchase of furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements   (306)   (350)
Other   3   41 

Net cash used in investing activities   (395)   (335)
         
Cash flows from financing activities:         

Decrease (increase) in restricted assets   1,083   (70)
Issuance of common stock, other than private equity offering   1,216   549 
Shares tendered for withholding taxes on exercise of stock options   (1,122)   — 
Repurchase of common stock   (483)   — 
Private equity offering   —   3,675 

Net cash provided by financing activities   694   4,154 
         
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   1,006   (2,796)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period   6,983   10,936 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 7,989  $ 8,140 
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LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (Continued)

(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)

         
  Nine months ended September 30,  
  2007   2006  
Supplemental cash flow information:         
         

Interest paid  $ 1,732  $ 49 
         

Taxes paid   31   229 
         
Non-cash financing transactions:         
         

Warrant issued for acquisition of customer accounts   —   698 
         

Warrant issued for interest in fund manager   —   399 
         

Lease commitment capitalized as part of Capitalink acquisition    463   — 
         

Issuance of shares of common stock in exchange for $5,000 of promissory notes
payable to former parent   6,833   — 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

1. Principles of Reporting and Description of Business
 

  The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc.
(“LTS” or the “Company”), a holding company, and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly-owned. The principal
operating subsidiary of LTS is Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc. (“Ladenburg”), which is a registered broker-dealer in
securities. The Company’s other subsidiaries primarily provide asset management and investment banking services. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

 

  The interim financial data as of September 30, 2007 and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006
are unaudited and have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. In the
opinion of management, the interim data includes all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for
a fair statement of the results for the interim periods. Because of the nature of the Company’s business, the results of any
interim period are not necessarily indicative of results for the full year.

 

  The condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all information and notes necessary for a complete
presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. The statement of financial condition at December 31, 2006 has been derived from the audited financial
statements at that date, but does not include all of the information and notes required by generally accepted accounting
principles for complete financial statement presentation. The notes to the consolidated financial statements included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, as amended, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) provide additional disclosures and a description of accounting policies.

 

  Ladenburg is a full service broker-dealer that has been a member of the New York Stock Exchange since 1879. Ladenburg
clears its customers’ transactions through a correspondent clearing broker on a fully disclosed basis. Broker-dealer activities
include principal and agency trading, research, investment banking, asset management and underwriting activities.
Ladenburg provides its services principally for middle market and emerging growth companies and high net worth
individuals through a coordinated effort among corporate finance, capital markets, investment management, brokerage and
trading professionals. Ladenburg is subject to regulation by, among others, the SEC, Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority, Commodities Futures Trading Commission, Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and National Futures
Association.

 

  On October 19, 2007, the Company acquired Investacorp Inc. and related companies. (See Note 15 — Subsequent Events.)
 

2. Securities Owned and Securities Sold, But Not Yet Purchased
 

  The components of securities owned and securities sold, but not yet purchased, as of September 30, 2007 and December 31,
2006 are as follows:

7
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LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) — (Continued)
(Unaudited)

         
      Securities Sold, 
  Securities  But Not  
  Owned   Yet Purchased  
September 30, 2007         
Common stock  $ 1,830  $ 1,525 
U. S. Government obligations   —   — 
Corporate bonds   1   — 
  $ 1,831  $ 1,525 

         
December 31, 2006         
Common stock  $ 197  $ 2,032 
U. S. Government obligations   6   — 
Corporate bonds   1   5 
  $ 204  $ 2,037 

  At September 30, 2007, securities sold, but not yet purchased were principally comprised of arbitrage positions and at
December 31, 2006 securities sold, but not yet purchased were principally comprised of securities sold pursuant to an
underwriters’ over-allotment.

 

  As of September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, approximately $1,670 and $167, respectively, of the securities owned
are deposited with the Company’s clearing broker, and pursuant to the clearing agreement, the securities may be sold or
hypothecated by the clearing broker.

 

3. Recently Issued Accounting Principles
 

  In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109)”, which became effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. This interpretation was issued to clarify the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in the financial statements by prescribing a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Company
adopted this interpretation effective January 1, 2007. The adoption did not have any effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

 

4. Restricted Common Shares of NYSE Euronext
 

  As of December 31, 2005, Ladenburg owned one membership on the NYSE, which had been accounted for at a cost of $868
in accordance with industry practice. On April 20, 2005, the NYSE and Archipelago Holdings, Inc. entered into a definitive
merger agreement, as amended and restated on July 20, 2005 (as so amended, the “NYSE Merger Agreement”), pursuant to
which Archipelago and NYSE agreed to combine their businesses and become wholly-owned subsidiaries of NYSE Group,
Inc. (“NYSE Group”), a newly-created, for-profit and publicly-traded holding company (collectively, the “NYSE Merger”).

 

  On March 7, 2006, the NYSE Merger was consummated, and each NYSE membership became entitled to receive in
exchange for the NYSE membership $300 in cash, plus 80,177 shares of NYSE Group common stock. In addition,
immediately prior to the consummation of the NYSE Merger, the NYSE announced a “permitted dividend” to be paid to
each NYSE membership in the amount of approximately $71, which was equivalent to the membership’s pro rata portion of
the NYSE’s “excess cash,” as defined in the NYSE Merger Agreement. Ladenburg received the permitted dividend and the
merger consideration relating to its NYSE membership in March 2006.

 

  As a result of the NYSE Merger, Ladenburg’s NYSE membership was converted into $371 in cash (including the permitted
dividend) and 80,177 shares of NYSE Group common stock. The shares of NYSE Group common stock received in the
NYSE Merger are subject to a three-year restriction on transfer. The restriction expires in three equal installments on each of
March 7, 2007, 2008 and 2009, unless the restrictions are removed earlier by

8
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LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) — (Continued)
(Unaudited)

  the NYSE Group in its sole discretion. Ladenburg accounted for its investment in the NYSE Group restricted common stock
at the estimated fair value with changes in fair value reflected in operations. The shares were valued at a discount from the
published market value as a result of the transfer restrictions.

 

  On May 5, 2006, Ladenburg participated in a secondary underwriting of its restricted NYSE Group common stock and sold
51,900 shares for an aggregate amount of $3,128, or average net proceeds of $60.27 per share, which was $440 less than the
carrying value of such shares. After the sale, Ladenburg’s investment in NYSE Group common stock consisted of 1,552
shares restricted through March 7, 2008 and 26,725 shares restricted through March 7, 2009.

 

  On June 20, 2006, Ladenburg transferred the 28,277 remaining restricted shares to LTS at the estimated fair value of $1,228
at such date. LTS, in accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”,
accounts for such restricted investments at cost based on the value on the date of transfer adjusted for other than temporary
impairment. Restricted investments whose restriction lapses within one year from the balance sheet date will be valued at
quoted market price. As of December 31, 2006, the estimated fair value of the restricted shares was $2,230.

 

  On March 7, 2007, 1,552 of the 28,277 shares began the last year of the restriction and are being classified as trading
securities at September 30, 2007. Accordingly, such shares are being valued at quoted market price as opposed to cost,
resulting in an unrealized gain of $53 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. In addition, in June 2007, the transfer
restriction on these 1,552 shares was removed by the issuer.

 

  In April 2007, in connection with its acquisition of Euronext N.V., NYSE Group was merged into a newly-formed subsidiary
of NYSE Euronext, a newly-formed corporation, pursuant to which each share of NYSE Group was converted into one share
of NYSE Euronext. The newly-issued NYSE Euronext shares are subject to the same transfer restrictions which applied to
the NYSE Group shares prior to the merger. As the NYSE Group was considered the acquiring entity for accounting
purposes, the Company continues to carry its investment in the restricted NYSE Euronext shares at cost. As of
September 30, 2007, the estimated fair value of the 26,725 restricted NYSE Euronext shares exceeded their carrying value
by $601.

 

  Included in revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 is a gain on the NYSE Merger of $4,859, representing
the difference between the estimated fair value of consideration received in the merger of $5,727 and Ladenburg’s carrying
value of its membership of $868, and realized losses of $1,001 ($0 recognized in the third quarter of 2006), consisting of a
loss of $440 on the sale of 51,900 shares and a loss of $561 representing the decline in the fair value of the 28,277
remaining NYSE Group restricted common shares on June 20, 2006 as compared to March 7, 2006.

 

5. Net Capital Requirements
 

  As a registered broker-dealer, Ladenburg is subject to the SEC’s Uniform Net Capital Rule 15c3-1 and the Commodity
Futures Trading Commission’s Regulation 1.17, which require the maintenance of minimum net capital. Ladenburg has
elected to compute its net capital under the alternative method allowed by these rules. At September 30, 2007, Ladenburg
had net capital, as defined, of $21,406, which exceeded its minimum capital requirement of $500 by $20,906.

 

  Ladenburg claims an exemption from the provisions of the SEC’s Rule 15c3-3 pursuant to paragraph (k)(2)(ii) as it clears its
customer transactions through its correspondent broker on a fully disclosed basis.

 

6. Contingencies
 

  Litigation and Regulatory Matters
 

  In May 2003, a suit was filed in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York by Sedona Corporation against
Ladenburg, former employees of Ladenburg, Pershing LLC and a number of other firms and individuals. The plaintiff
alleges, among other things, that certain defendants (not Ladenburg) purchased
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LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) — (Continued)
(Unaudited)

   convertible securities from plaintiff and then allegedly manipulated the market to obtain an increased number of shares from
the conversion of those securities. Ladenburg acted as placement agent and not as principal in those transactions. Plaintiff
has alleged that Ladenburg and the other defendants violated federal securities laws and various state laws. The plaintiff
seeks compensatory damages from the defendants of at least $660,000 and punitive damages of $2,000,000. In August 2005,
Ladenburg’s motion to dismiss was granted in part and denied in part; in July 2006, Ladenburg’s motion to reconsider
portions of that decision was denied. Ladenburg has requested that the Court dismiss the entire action; that request is
pending. The Company believes the plaintiff’s claims are without merit and intends to vigorously defend against them.

 

  In July 2004, a suit was filed in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Arkansas by Pet Quarters, Inc. against
Ladenburg, a former employee of Ladenburg and a number of other firms and individuals. The plaintiff alleges, among other
things, that certain defendants (not Ladenburg) purchased convertible securities from plaintiff and then allegedly
manipulated the market to obtain an increased number of shares from the conversion of those securities. Ladenburg acted as
placement agent and not as principal in those transactions. Plaintiff has alleged that Ladenburg and the other defendants
violated federal securities laws and various state laws. The plaintiff seeks compensatory damages from the defendants of at
least $400,000. In April 2006, Ladenburg’s motion to dismiss this action was granted in part and denied in part. On April 9,
2007, the court issued an order staying this action pending the final outcome of an arbitration involving parties other than
Ladenburg. The Company believes that the plaintiff’s claims are without merit and intends to vigorously defend against
them.

 

  In December 2005, a lawsuit was filed in New York State Supreme Court, New York County, by Digital Broadcast Corp.
against Ladenburg, a Ladenburg employee, and another individual. The plaintiff alleges, among other things, that in
connection with plaintiff’s retention of Ladenburg to assist it in its efforts to obtain financing through a private placement of
its securities, Ladenburg committed fraud and breach of fiduciary duty, breach of contract, and breach of the implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing. The plaintiff seeks compensatory damages in excess of $100,000. In
November 2006, Ladenburg’s motion to dismiss was granted in part and denied in part. On March 28, 2007, the court issued
orders concerning two motions for reconsideration; as a result, the remaining claims against Ladenburg are the claims for
fraud, breach of fiduciary duty, and breach of contract. The Company believes that the plaintiff’s claims are without merit
and intends vigorously to defend against them.

 

  Ladenburg is a defendant in other litigation and may be subject to unasserted claims or arbitrations primarily in connection
with its activities as a securities broker-dealer and participation in public underwritings. Such litigation and claims involve
substantial or indeterminate amounts and are in varying stages of legal proceedings. As of September 30, 2007, the
Company’s subsidiaries are involved in several pending arbitrations in which claimants are seeking substantial amounts of
damages. Where the Company believes that it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be
reasonably estimated, the Company has provided a liability. Such liability amounted to approximately $358 at
September 30, 2007 and $483 at December 31, 2006 (included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities). With respect to
other pending matters, the Company is unable to estimate a range of possible loss; however, in the opinion of management,
after consultation with counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters should not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

 

  Deferred Underwriting Compensation
 

  Ladenburg is entitled to receive deferred investment banking and underwriting fees from certain clients whose initial public
offerings Ladenburg managed or participated in. These clients are primarily Specified Purpose Acquisition Companies
(SPACs) and the payment of deferred fees is contingent upon the SPACs consummating business combinations. Such fees
and their related expenses are not reflected in the Company’s results of operations until the underlying business
combinations have been completed and the fees have been irrevocably earned. No expense is incurred until the fees are
earned. Generally, these fees may be received within 24 months of the respective date of the offering, or not received at all if
a business combination transaction has not been completed during such time period. As of September 30, 2007, Ladenburg
had unrecorded potential deferred fees for SPAC-related transactions of $27,461, which, net of commissions and related
expenses, amounted to approximately $16,200.
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LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) — (Continued)
(Unaudited)

7. Income Taxes
 

  A provision for income taxes which amounted to approximately $46 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 was a
result of certain state and local taxes not measured on income, certain state taxes measured on income and the federal
alternative minimum tax. As a result of utilizing a portion of its net operating loss carryforwards, no provision for federal
income taxes, other than an alternative minimum tax, is reflected in the accompanying statements of operations for such
period. For financial statement purposes, the Company has elected to use the tax law approach, under which the Company
will track the benefit from the share-based payments so that the credit to capital would not be recognized until the net
operating loss is fully utilized.

 

  Deferred tax amounts as of September 30, 2007, which consist principally of the tax benefit of net operating loss
carryforwards and accrued expenses, were approximately $26,900, a portion of which is $3,936 of stock-based
compensation expensed during 2007 in accordance with SFAS 123R.

 

  After consideration of all the evidence, both positive and negative, especially the fact the Company sustained operating
losses during 2005 and 2004, management has determined that a valuation allowance at September 30, 2007 was necessary
to fully offset the deferred tax assets based on the likelihood of future realization. At September 30, 2007, the Company had
net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $49,000, expiring in various years from 2015 through 2026.

 

8. Off-Balance-Sheet Risk
 

  Ladenburg does not carry accounts for customers or perform custodial functions related to customers’ securities. Ladenburg
introduces all of its customer transactions, which are not reflected in these financial statements, to its primary clearing
broker, which maintains the customers’ accounts and clears such transactions. Additionally, the primary clearing broker
provides the clearing and depository operations for Ladenburg’s proprietary securities transactions. These activities may
expose the Company to off-balance-sheet risk in the event that customers do not fulfill their obligations with the clearing
broker, as Ladenburg has agreed to indemnify its clearing broker for any resulting losses. Ladenburg continually assesses
risk associated with each customer who is on margin credit and records an estimated loss when management believes
collection from the customer is unlikely.

 

  The clearing operations for Ladenburg’s securities transactions are provided by one clearing broker. At September 30, 2007
and December 31, 2006, substantially all of the securities owned and the amounts due from clearing broker reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial condition are positions held at and amounts due from one clearing broker, a large
financial institution. The Company is subject to credit risk should this clearing broker be unable to fulfill its obligations.

 

9. Debt and Liquidity
 

  Debt Exchange
 

  On March 27, 2002, the Company borrowed $2,500 from New Valley LLC (“New Valley”), its former parent. The loan,
which bore interest at 1% above the prime rate, was due on the earlier of December 31, 2003 or the completion of one or
more equity financings where the Company received at least $5,000 in total proceeds. On July 16, 2002, the Company
borrowed an additional $2,500 from New Valley (collectively with the March 2002 loan, the “2002 Loans”) on the same
terms as the March 2002 loan. In November 2002, New Valley agreed in connection with the loans to the Company from an
affiliate of Ladenburg’s clearing broker to extend the maturity of the 2002 Loans to December 31, 2006. In December 2006,
New Valley agreed to extend the maturity of the 2002 Loans to March 31, 2007. On February 13, 2007 the Company
entered into a Debt Exchange Agreement (“Exchange Agreement”) with New Valley. Under the Exchange Agreement, New
Valley agreed to exchange the principal amount of the notes for shares of the Company’s common stock at an exchange
price of $1.80 per share, representing the average closing price of the Company’s common stock for
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  the 30 trading days ending on the date of the Exchange Agreement. The promissory notes continued to accrue interest
through the closing of the debt exchange.

 

  On June 29, 2007, after the Company’s shareholders approved the debt exchange at the Company’s annual meeting of
shareholders, the Company exchanged 2,777,778 shares for the principal amount of the notes and paid $1,732 to New
Valley for accrued interest on the loans. The exchange resulted in a loss on extinguishment of debt of $1,833 representing
the excess of the quoted market value of the 2,777,778 shares of stock at the date of the Exchange Agreement ($2.46 per
share) over the carrying amount of the notes.

 

  The carrying amounts of notes payable to New Valley approximated fair value because of their variable interest rates
which periodically adjusted to reflect changes in overall market interest rates.

 

  Liquidity
 

  The Company’s overall capital and funding needs are continually reviewed to ensure that its liquidity and capital base
can support the estimated needs of its business units. These reviews take into account business needs as well as regulatory
capital requirements of the Company’s broker-dealer subsidiaries. If, based on these reviews, it is determined that the
Company requires additional funds to support its liquidity and capital base or to grow its business, the Company would
seek to raise additional capital through other available sources, including through borrowing additional funds on a short-
term basis from the Company’s shareholders, clearing broker or other parties, although there can be no assurance such
funding would be available. Additionally, the Company may attempt to raise funds through a private placement, a rights
offering or other type of financing. If the Company is unable to generate sufficient cash from operations or is unable to
find alternative sources of funding as described above, it would have an adverse impact on the Company’s liquidity and
operations.

 

  See Note 15 — Subsequent Events regarding recent borrowings by the Company and Ladenburg.
 

10. Shareholders’ Equity
 

  Warrants
 

  As of September 30, 2007, outstanding warrants to acquire the Company’s common stock were as follows:
         

 Exercise  Number  
Expiration Date  Price   of Shares  
 
2013  $ .95   500,000(a)
2016   .94   825,000(b)
2016   .96   1,933,334(c)
       3,258,334 

 

(a)  Does not include unvested warrant to acquire 500,000 shares held by one entity, the exercisability of which is contingent
upon the sole discretion of the Company’s Executive Committee. The Company’s Executive Committee has not yet made
a determination on the exercisability of such warrant.

 

(b)  Does not include unvested warrants to acquire 675,000 shares, the exercisability of which is contingent upon the renewal
of certain employment contracts.

 

(c)  Does not include unvested warrants to acquire 966,666 shares placed in escrow, the exercisability of which is contingent
upon continued employment by certain employees.
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  Repurchase Program
 

  In March 2007, the Company’s board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to 2,500,000 shares of its common stock
from time to time on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions depending on market conditions. The
repurchase program will be funded using approximately 15% of the Company’s EBITDA, as adjusted. As of September 30,
2007, 264,990 shares had been repurchased for $483 under the program.

 

11. Stock Compensation Plans
 

  Employee Stock Purchase Plan
 

  In 2002, the Company’s shareholders approved the Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc. Qualified Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan”), under which a total of 5,000,000 shares of common stock became available for
issuance. On November 1, 2006, the Company’s shareholders approved an amendment to the Purchase Plan to increase the
number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the plan from 5,000,000 to 10,000,000. Under the
Purchase Plan, as currently administered by the Company’s compensation committee, all full-time employees may use a
portion of their salary to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock at a discount from the market price of the
Company’s common stock. Option periods have been initially set at three month periods and commence on January 1,
April 1, July 1, and October 1 of each year and end on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year. In
order for the Plan to be accounted for as non-compensatory under SFAS 123R, effective January 1, 2006, the discount was
decreased to 5% below the market price of the Company’s common stock at the end of such option period. The Purchase
Plan is intended to qualify as an “employee stock purchase plan” under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code. During
the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2007, 45,375 and 159,565 shares of the Company’s
common stock were issued to employees under the Purchase Plan, at approximately $1.86 and $2.25 per share,
respectively, resulting in a capital contribution of $84 and $359, respectively.

 

  Amended and Restated 1999 Performance Equity Plan
 

  In 1999, the Company adopted the 1999 Performance Equity Plan (“Option Plan”) which, as amended, provides for the
grant of stock options and stock purchase rights to certain designated employees, officers and directors and certain other
persons performing services for the Company and its subsidiaries, as designated by the board of directors. On November 1,
2006, the Company’s shareholders approved an amendment to the Option Plan to increase the number of shares of
common stock available for issuance under the plan from 10,000,000 to 25,000,000 and to increase the annual limit on
grants to any individual from 1,000,000 shares to 1,500,000 shares. Awards include stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, deferred stock, stock reload options and/or other stock-based awards. Dividends, if any, are not
paid on unexercised stock options. The Option Plan is administered by the compensation committee of the Board of
Directors of LTS. Stock options granted under the Option Plan may be incentive stock options or non-qualified stock
options. An incentive stock option may be granted only through May 27, 2009 and may only be exercised within ten
years of the date of grant (or five years in the case of an incentive stock option granted to an optionee who at the time of
the grant possesses more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of LTS (“10% Shareholder”).
The exercise price of both incentive and non-qualified options may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of
LTS’s common stock; provided, however, that the exercise price of an incentive stock option granted to a 10%
Shareholder shall not be less than 110% of the fair market value of LTS’s common stock. Options granted under the
Option Plan generally vest in equal amounts on each of the anniversaries of the grant date over three or four years. As of
September 30, 2007, there were options to purchase 9,873,850 shares of common stock available for issuance under the
Option Plan. A summary of the status of the Option Plan at September 30, 2007 and changes during the nine months then
ended are presented below:
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          Weighted-     
          Average     
          Remaining     
      Weighted   Contractual  Aggregate 
      Average   Term   Intrinsic  
  Shares   Exercise Price  (Years)   Value  
 
Options outstanding, December 31,

2006   11,043,311  $ 0.99         
                 
Granted   3,405,000   2.33         
Exercised   (1,685,285)  0.71         
Forfeited   (805,418)  1.54         
Expired   —   —         
Options outstanding, September 30,

2007   11,957,608   1.37   8.05  $ 9,107 

                 
Vested or expected to vest   5,894,622   1.25   6.98   5,304 

                 
Options exercisable, September 30,

2007   4,420,859   1.17   6.27   4,379 

   On July 26, 2007, the Company granted ten-year stock options to purchase 1,200,000, 600,000, 600,000 and 300,000 shares
of Company common stock at an exercise price of $2.30 per share to Dr. Phillip Frost, Richard Lampen, Mark Zeitchick and
Howard Lorber, respectively. Dr. Frost and Mr. Lorber serve as directors of the Company and Messrs. Lampen and Zeitchick
serve as executive officers and directors of the Company. The exercise price was in excess of the fair value ($1.75) of the
Company’s common stock on the grant date. The options vest in four equal annual installments beginning on the first
anniversary of the grant date, subject to earlier vesting upon the recipient’s death or disability or a change of control of the
Company.

 

  See Note 15 — Subsequent Events regarding the grant of certain plan and non-plan options.
 

  Non-Plan Options
 

  The Company has also granted stock options to certain recruited employees in conjunction with their employment
agreements, which are outside of the Option Plan. In September 2006, Ladenburg engaged several employees of BroadWall
Capital LLC (“Broadwall”) to continue as employees of Ladenburg. The Company granted to certain of these individuals
options to purchase an aggregate of 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $1.05 per
share. The options vested as to 10% of the shares immediately and vested, or will vest, as to 22.5% of the shares on each of
September 5, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010. A summary of the status of these non-plan options at September 30, 2007, and
changes during the nine months then ended are presented below:

                 
          Weighted-     
          Average     
      Weighted-  Remaining     
      Average   Contractual  Aggregate 
      Exercise   Term   Intrinsic  
  Shares   Price   (Years)   Value  
 
Options outstanding, December 31, 2006   8,500,000  $ 0.63         
                 
Granted   —   —         
Exercised   (2,500,001)  0.52         
Forfeited   (1,249,999)  0.64         
Expired   —   —         
Options outstanding, September 30,



2007   4,750,000   0.69   7.96  $ 6,044 

                 
Vested or expected to vest   1,932,912   0.75   8.13   2,343 

                 
Options exercisable, September 30, 2007   487,501   1.05   8.96   444 

14



Table of Contents

LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) — (Continued)
(Unaudited)

   The weighted-average grant date fair value of employee options granted for plan and non-plan options during the nine
months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006 was $1.69 and $0.95, respectively. The fair value of each option award is
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following weighted-average
assumptions:

         
  September 30,  September 30, 
  2007   2006  
 
Dividend yield   0.00%  0.00%
Weighted-average volatility   127.28%  128.29%
Risk-free interest rate   4.66%  4.84%
Expected life (in years)   6   6 

   The Company took into consideration guidance contained in SFAS No. 123R and SAB No. 107 when reviewing and
developing assumptions for the grants. The weighted average expected life for the 2007 grants of 6 years reflects the
alternative simplified method permitted by SAB No. 107, which defines the expected life as the average of the contractual
term of the options and the weighted-average vesting period for all option tranches. Expected volatility for the 2007 option
grants is based on historical volatility over the number of years equal to the expected life, prior to the option grant date.

 

  As of September 30, 2007, there was $7,670 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based
compensation arrangements under the Option Plan and for options granted outside of the Option Plan. This cost is expected
to be recognized over the vesting periods of the options, which on a weighted-average basis is approximately 1.58 years.

 

  The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006 amounted to
$5,577 and $186, respectively. Tax benefits related to options exercised were not deemed to be realized as net operating loss
carryforwards are available to offset taxable income computed without giving effect to the deductions related to option
exercises.

 

  Non-cash compensation expense relating to stock options was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model,
amortizing the value calculated over the vesting period and applying a forfeiture percentage as estimated by the Company’s
management, using historical information. The Company has elected to recognize compensation cost for option awards that
have graded vesting schedules on a straight line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award. For the three
months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, the non-cash compensation expense relating to stock option agreements
granted to employees amounted to $826 and $167, respectively, and for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and
2006, the non-cash compensation expense amounted to $1,530 and $445, respectively. In addition, the non-cash
compensation expense related to warrants granted to employees in connection with the acquisition of Capitalink L.C., a
registered broker dealer providing investment banking services (“Capitalink”), for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2007 amounted to $854 and $2,451, respectively.

 

  On September 1, 2005, the Company granted the members of its former Advisory Board stock options to purchase an
aggregate of 1,200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.51 per share. The options, which
expire on August 31, 2015, vest in equal amounts on each of the first four anniversaries of the date of grant. The Company
recorded a charge of $28 and $59 for the fair value of the options for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and $335 and $250 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Company will
record additional expense relating to these options during their vesting period with a final adjustment based on the options’
fair value on the vesting date.

 

  Employee Stock Purchase Agreements
 

  In 2005, the Company entered into several employment agreements with newly hired employees pursuant to which the
Company sold common stock to the employees. Where the sales price was below the fair market
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  value of the stock on the effective date of the agreements, the Company recorded unearned stock-based compensation
expense of $1,587, representing the difference between fair market value of the common stock and the sales price. Such
compensation was amortized over the initial term of the employees’ employment agreements, which were generally one to
two years. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, the Company amortized
non-cash compensation expense of $0 and $77 and $90 and $749, respectively, relating to the sales of its common stock
to new employees at prices below fair market value. At September 30, 2007, there was no unearned employee stock-based
compensation.

 

12. Earnings Per Share
 

  Basic net earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. The dilutive
effect of potential common shares outstanding is included in diluted net earnings per share. The computations of basic and
diluted per share data are as follows:

                 
  Three months ended   Nine months ended  
  September 30,   September 30,  
  2007   2006   2007   2006  
 
Net income (loss)  $ (2,098) $ 570  $ (1,207) $ 3,977 

                 
Basic weighted-average shares   159,826,786   150,559,806   156,362,156   147,430,887 
Effect of dilutive securities:                 

Common stock options   —   3,559,675   —   3,104,483 
Warrants to purchase

common stock   —   1,470   —   1,470 

                 
Dilutive potential common

shares   159,826,786   154,120,951   156,362,156   150,536,840 
Net income (loss) per share:                 
                 

Basic  $ (0.01) $ 0.00  $ (0.01) $ 0.03 

                 
Diluted  $ (0.01) $ 0.00  $ (0.01) $ 0.03 

  During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, options and warrants to purchase 3,386,557 and
4,815,168 common shares, respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted income (loss) per share as the
effect would have been anti-dilutive.

 

13. Acquisitions
 

  BroadWall
 

  On September 11, 2006, Ladenburg acquired substantially all of the securities brokerage accounts and registered
representatives and employees of BroadWall. In connection with this acquisition, the Company issued to BroadWall ten-
year warrants to purchase 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.94 per share. The
warrants became exercisable as to 150,000 shares immediately upon grant and became, or will become, exercisable as to
337,500 shares on each of September 11, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 contingent upon the continued employment of two
former employees of BroadWall, both of whom have entered into two-year employment agreements with the Company.
Such individuals had a 40% ownership interest in BroadWall. Accordingly, the Company has valued 825,000 of the
warrants that vest over the two-year term of the employment agreements at $698 representing consideration for the
acquisition. The remaining warrants, representing contingent consideration, will be recorded as additional purchase price
if and when the Company renews the employees’ employment contracts. The value of the warrants, together with legal
costs related to the acquisition, has been assigned to customer accounts (included in intangible assets, net), which is being
amortized to expense over an estimated life of ten years.
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  Capitalink
 

   On October 18, 2006, the Company, for an aggregate consideration of $7,392, acquired Telluride Holdings, Inc.
(“Telluride”) through a merger into a newly formed subsidiary of the Company. Telluride owned 100% of Capitalink. The
consideration consisted of $1,000 in cash, 4,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock valued at $3,840 and ten-year
warrants to purchase 2,900,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.96 per share valued at
$2,552. Warrants to purchase 966,666 shares of common stock are immediately exercisable and the remaining warrants will
become immediately exercisable upon their release from escrow as described below. In connection with the merger,
Ladenburg entered into three-year employment agreements with each of Telluride’s three shareholders.

 

  In connection with the transaction, 2,666,667 of the shares of common stock, warrants to purchase 1,933,333 shares of
common stock and $667 in cash have been placed in escrow contingent upon continued employment of the selling
shareholders, one-half of which was released to the shareholders in June 2007 and the balance will be released on
January 18, 2008. Accordingly, the fair value of the consideration placed in escrow of $4,937 is being accounted for as
compensation over the 15 month escrow period. Compensation expense of $823 had been recognized in the fourth quarter
of 2006 and is estimated to amount to $3,948 for 2007 and $166 in 2008. Compensation expense of $987 and $2,961 was
recognized in the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2007. The remaining consideration of $2,455
has been accounted for as purchase price, of which $173 has been allocated to trade name with an estimated ten year life and
$2,282 has been allocated to relationships with an estimated four year life. The transaction resulted in an increase of $2,122
to additional paid-in capital resulting from the issuance of 4,000,000 shares of common stock and 966,666 vested warrants.
The 2,666,667 shares of common stock placed in escrow have been considered outstanding as the former Telluride
shareholders are entitled to voting rights.

 

  In February 2007, the former Capitalink office was vacated and the employees moved into the Company’s Miami office, as
planned. The present value of the lease commitment amounting to $463 has been accounted for as purchase price, of which
$33 has been allocated to trade name and $430 has been allocated to relationships.

 

  The following unaudited pro forma information presents the Company’s condensed consolidated results of operations as if
the BroadWall and Capitalink acquisitions had occurred as of January 1, 2006. The pro forma amounts of net income reflect
amortization of the amounts ascribed to intangibles acquired in the acquisitions and amortization of unearned employee
stock-based compensation. In addition, pro forma basic per share data reflect the vested common shares issued and pro forma
diluted per share data reflect common share equivalents attributable to unvested common shares and warrants calculated by
the treasury stock method:

         
  Three months ended  Nine months ended  
  September 30, 2006   September 30, 2006 
 
Total revenue  $ 11,926  $ 38,249 
Net income (loss)   (85)  2,183 
Basic earnings (loss) per share   0.00   0.01 
Diluted earnings (loss) per share   0.00   0.01 
Weighted average shares outstanding —

basic   153,226,473   149,345,417 
Weighted average shares outstanding —

diluted   153,226,473   153,489,337 
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14. Intangible Assets
 

  At September 30 2007, intangible assets subject to amortization, all of which were acquired during 2006, consisted of the
following:

         
  Gross Carrying  Accumulated  
  Amount   Amortization 
 
Customer accounts  $ 740  $ 78 
Relationships   2,783   667 
Trade name   211   20 
  $ 3,734  $ 765 

   Aggregate amortization expense amounted to $198 and $621 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007,
respectively. The weighted-average amortization period for total amortizable intangibles is 4.75 years. Estimated
amortization expense for each of the five succeeding years is as follows:

     
2007 (remaining portion of year)  $197 
2008  $791 
2009  $791 
2010  $646 
2011  $ 95 

15. Subsequent Events
 

  On October 2, 2007, Ladenburg entered into a $72,000 temporary subordinated loan agreement on NYSE Form CSAT with
Frost Gamma Investments Trust (“Frost Gamma”), an entity affiliated with Dr. Phillip Frost, the Chairman of the Board and
principal shareholder of the Company. Ladenburg entered into this agreement to meet certain capital requirements in
connection with underwriting transactions. The loan bears interest at the London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (LIBOR) plus 2%,
payable monthly, and provides for a commitment fee of $420. In October 2007, following the completion of an
underwriting, $42,000 was repaid. Interest amounted to $124. The remaining balance of $30,000, plus interest, is
scheduled to be repaid by November 14, 2007.

 

  On October 19, 2007 (the “Closing Date”), the Company acquired (the “Acquisition”) all of the outstanding shares of
privately-held Investacorp Inc. and related companies (collectively, “Investacorp”), an independent broker-dealer and
investment adviser, pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of the Closing Date by and among the Company,
Investacorp, Bruce A. Zwigard (“Zwigard”) and the Bruce A. Zwigard Grantor Retained Annuity Trust dated June 20, 2007
(together with Zwigard, the “Sellers”). On the Closing Date, the Company paid the Sellers $25,000. In addition, the
Company issued a three-year, non-negotiable promissory note (the “Zwigard Note”) in the aggregate principal amount of
$15,000 to Zwigard. The Zwigard Note bears interest at 4.11% per annum and is payable in 36 equal monthly
installments. The Company has pledged the stock of Investacorp to Zwigard pursuant to a pledge agreement as security for
the payment of the Zwigard Note. The Zwigard Note contains customary events of default, which if uncured, entitle
Zwigard to accelerate the due date of the unpaid principal amount of, and all accrued and unpaid interest on, the Zwigard
Note. In addition, the Company paid the Sellers an additional amount of approximately $5,100, subject to adjustment
post-closing, representing Investacorp’s retained earnings plus paid-in capital.

 

  In connection with the Acquisition, on the Closing Date, the Company entered into a $30,000 revolving credit agreement
(the “Credit Agreement”) with Frost Gamma. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement have a five-year term and bear
interest at a rate of 11% per annum, payable quarterly. Frost Gamma received a one-time funding fee of $150. The note
issued under the Credit Agreement contains customary events of default, which if uncured, entitle the holder to accelerate
the due date of the unpaid principal amount of, and all accrued and unpaid interest on, such note. Pursuant to the Credit
Agreement, the Company granted to Frost Gamma a warrant (the “Warrant”) to purchase 2,000,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock. The Warrant is exercisable for a ten-year period and the exercise price is $1.91, the closing
price of the Company’s common stock on the Closing Date.

 

  In connection with his continued employment with Investacorp, the Company granted Zwigard employee stock options
(the “Zwigard Options”) to purchase a total of 3,000,000 shares of its common stock at $1.91, the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on the Closing Date. The Zwigard Options vest over a three-year period (subject to certain
exceptions), have a ten-year term and were issued pursuant to a non-plan option agreement.



 

  Additionally the Company issued to certain Investacorp employees options to purchase 1,150,000 shares of common
stock under the Option Plan. These options vest in four equal annual installments and have an exercise price of $1.91, the
fair market value of the common stock on the Closing Date.
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Introduction

     We are engaged in retail and institutional securities brokerage, investment banking services, asset management services and
investment activities through our principal operating subsidiary, Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc. (“Ladenburg”) and through
our recently-acquired subsidiary, Investacorp Inc. (collectively with related companies, “Investacorp”). We are committed to
establishing a significant presence in the financial services industry by meeting the varying investment needs of our corporate,
institutional and retail clients.

     Ladenburg is a full service broker-dealer that has been a member of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) since 1879. It
provides its services principally for middle market and emerging growth companies and high net worth individuals through a
coordinated effort among corporate finance, capital markets, investment management, brokerage and trading professionals.
Ladenburg is subject to regulation by, among others, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and is a member of the Securities Investor Protection
Corporation. Ladenburg had approximately 105 registered representatives and 62 other full time employees at September 30,
2007. Its private client services and institutional sales departments serve approximately 22,000 accounts nationwide and its
asset management area provides investment management and financial planning services to numerous individuals and
institutions.

     Investacorp is an independent broker-dealer and investment adviser, which had approximately 500 independent contractor
registered representatives, more than $8.5 billion in client assets and approximately 80 other full time employees at
October 19, 2007. Investacorp, which is headquartered in Miami-Lakes, Florida, is subject to regulation by, among others, the
SEC, the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and state insurance regulators
and is a member of the Securities Investor Protection Corporation. Investacorp’s national network of independent registered
representatives primarily serves retail clients.

Recent Developments

     Investacorp Acquisition

     On October 19, 2007, we acquired all of the outstanding shares of privately-held Investacorp, pursuant to a Stock Purchase
Agreement by and among us, Investacorp, Bruce A. Zwigard (“Zwigard”) and the Bruce A. Zwigard Grantor Retained Annuity
Trust dated June 20, 2007 (together with Zwigard, the “Sellers”). At the closing, we paid the Sellers $25,000. In addition, we
issued a three-year, non-negotiable promissory note in the aggregate principal amount of $15,000 to Zwigard. The Zwigard
note bears interest at 4.11% per annum and is payable in 36 equal monthly installments. We have pledged the stock of
Investacorp to Zwigard pursuant to a pledge agreement as security for the payment of the Zwigard note. The Zwigard note
contains customary events of default, which if uncured, entitle Zwigard to accelerate the due date of the unpaid principal
amount of, and all accrued and unpaid interest on, the Zwigard note. In addition, we paid the Sellers an additional amount of
approximately $5,100, subject to adjustment post-closing, representing Investacorp’s retained earnings plus paid-in capital.

     In connection with the Investacorp acquisition, on October 19, 2007, we entered into a $30,000 revolving credit agreement
with Frost Gamma Investments Trust (“Frost Gamma”), an entity affiliated with Dr. Phillip Frost, our Chairman of the Board
and our principal shareholder. Borrowings under the credit agreement have a five-year term and bear interest at a rate of 11%
per annum, payable quarterly. Frost Gamma received a one-time funding fee of $150. The note issued under the credit
agreement contains customary events of default, which if uncured, entitle the holder to accelerate the due date of the unpaid
principal amount of, and all accrued and unpaid interest on, such note. Pursuant to the credit agreement, we granted to Frost
Gamma a warrant to purchase 2,000,000 shares of our common stock. The warrant is exercisable for a ten-year period and the
exercise price is $1.91, the closing price of our common stock on October 19, 2007.
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     In connection with his continued employment with Investacorp, we granted Zwigard employee stock options to purchase a
total of 3,000,000 shares of our common stock at $1.91, the closing price of our common stock on October 19, 2007. The
Zwigard options vest over a three-year period (subject to certain exceptions), have a ten-year term and were issued pursuant to
a non-plan option agreement.

     Additionally we issued to certain Investacorp employees options to purchase a total of 1,150,000 shares of common stock
under the Option Plan. These options vest in four equal annual installments and have an exercise price of $1.91, the fair market
value of the common stock on October 19, 2007.

     We continue to explore opportunities to grow our businesses, including through potential acquisitions of other securities
and investment banking firms, both domestically and internationally. These acquisitions may involve payments of material
amounts of cash or debt or the issuance of significant amounts of our equity securities, which may be dilutive to our existing
shareholders and/or may increase our leverage. We cannot assure you that we will be able to consummate any such potential
acquisitions on terms acceptable to us or, if we do, that any acquired business will be profitable. There is also a risk that we
will not be able to successfully integrate acquired businesses into our existing business and operations.

     Temporary Subordinated Loan

     On October 2, 2007, Ladenburg entered into a $72,000 temporary subordinated loan agreement on NYSE Form CSAT with
Frost Gamma. Ladenburg entered into this agreement to meet certain capital requirements in connection with underwriting
transactions. The loan bears interest at the London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (LIBOR) plus 2%, payable monthly, and provides for
a commitment fee of $420. In October 2007, following the completion of an underwriting, $42,000 was repaid. Interest on the
repaid portion amounted to $124. Ladenburg will repay the remaining balance of $30,000, plus interest, on or before
November 14, 2007.

     Deferred Underwriting Compensation

     Ladenburg is entitled to receive deferred investment banking and underwriting fees from certain clients whose initial public
offerings Ladenburg managed and participated. These clients are primarily Specified Purpose Acquisition Companies (SPACs)
and the payment of deferred fees is contingent upon the SPACs consummating business combinations. Such fees are not
reflected in our results of operations until the underlying business combinations have been completed and the fees have been
irrevocably earned. Generally, these fees may be received within 24 months of the respective date of the offering, or not
received at all if a business combination transaction is not completed during such time period. As of September 30, 2007,
Ladenburg had unrecorded potential deferred fees for our SPAC-related transactions of $27,461, which, net of expenses,
amounted to approximately $16,200. Subsequent to September 30, 2007, Ladenburg realized gross deferred fees of $5,834 and
$3,200 net fees, in connection with the closing of a business combination by a SPAC.

     Option Grants

     On July 26, 2007, we granted ten-year stock options to purchase 1,200,000, 600,000, 600,000 and 300,000 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price of $2.30 per share to Dr. Phillip Frost, Richard Lampen, Mark Zeitchick and Howard Lorber,
respectively. Dr. Frost and Mr. Lorber serve as directors of our company and Messrs. Lampen and Zeitchick serve as executive
officers and directors of our company. The exercise price was in excess of the fair value of our common stock on the grant date
($1.75). The options vest in four equal annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date, subject to
earlier vesting upon the recipient’s death or disability or if we undergo a change of control.

     Debt Exchange

     In February 2007, we entered into a debt exchange agreement with New Valley LLC (“New Valley”) to retire our remaining
outstanding indebtedness. Pursuant to the agreement, New Valley agreed to exchange the $5,000 principal amount of our
promissory notes held by New Valley for shares of our common stock at an exchange price of $1.80 per share, representing the
average closing price of our common stock for the 30 trading days ending on the date of the debt exchange agreement. The
promissory notes continued to accrue interest through the closing of the debt exchange.

20



Table of Contents

     The completion of the transaction was subject to shareholder approval, which was obtained at our annual shareholders
meeting on June 29, 2007. On that date, we issued 2,777,778 shares of our common stock in exchange for the $5,000 principal
amount of notes and we paid accrued interest on the notes of $1,732 to New Valley. The exchange resulted in a loss of $1,833
in the second quarter of 2007 representing the excess of the quoted market value of the 2,777,778 shares of stock at the date of
the exchange agreement ($2.46 per share) over the carrying amount of the notes.

     2006 Acquisitions

     On September 11, 2006, Ladenburg acquired substantially all of the securities brokerage accounts and registered
representatives and employees of BroadWall Capital LLC, a boutique broker-dealer located in New York City, which caters to
both institutions and private clients. In connection with this acquisition, we issued to BroadWall ten-year warrants to purchase
1,500,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.94 per share. In connection with the acquisition, David
Rosenberg, the Chief Executive Officer of BroadWall, and Adam Malamed, the President of BroadWall, became Senior Vice
Presidents of Ladenburg and currently serve as Co-Chief Operating Officers of Ladenburg. The warrants issued to BroadWall
are currently exercisable as to 150,000 shares and became, or will become, exercisable as to 337,500 shares on each of
September 11, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010. However, any unvested portion of the warrants shall terminate if the employment
of Messrs. Rosenberg and Malamed is terminated by Ladenburg for “cause” or by Messrs. Rosenberg and Malamed without
“good reason.” Additionally, the warrant shall become fully vested and exercisable if Ladenburg terminates Messrs. Rosenberg
and Malamed without “cause,” Messrs. Rosenberg and Malamed terminate their employment with “good reason,” both
Messrs. Rosenberg and Malamed die or become disabled, or if we undergo a change of control.

     On October 18, 2006, we consummated the transactions contemplated by an agreement and plan of merger, dated as of
September 6, 2006, with Telluride Acquisition, Inc., our wholly-owned subsidiary, Telluride Holdings, Inc. and each of James
S. Cassel, Scott Salpeter and Barry Steiner, the shareholders of Telluride Holdings. Telluride Holdings is the parent of
Capitalink, L.C., a Miami-based investment banking firm which provides services to middle-market and emerging growth
companies. In exchange for all the capital stock of Telluride Holdings, we paid Messrs. Cassel, Salpeter and Steiner $1,000 in
cash and issued to them (i) 4,000,000 shares of our common stock and (ii) ten-year warrants to purchase 2,900,000 shares of
our common stock at an exercise price of $0.96 per share. Warrants to purchase 966,666 shares of our common stock are
immediately exercisable and the remaining warrants will become immediately exercisable upon their release from escrow as
described below. In connection with the merger, Ladenburg entered into three-year employment agreements with each of
Messrs. Cassel, Salpeter and Steiner. Mr. Cassel became Vice Chairman, Senior Managing Director and Head of Investment
Banking of Ladenburg, and each of Messrs. Salpeter and Steiner became Managing Directors — Investment Banking of
Ladenburg. Of the consideration issued to Messrs. Cassel, Salpeter and Steiner, (x) 2,666,667 of the shares, (y) warrants to
purchase 1,933,333 shares of common stock and (z) $667 in cash have been placed in escrow. One-half of the escrow amount
was released to the shareholders on June 3, 2007 and the remaining half of the escrow amount will be released on January 18,
2008; provided, however, that (i) if any of such shareholder’s employment is terminated by Ladenburg “without cause,” or by
the shareholder for “good reason,” or upon his death or disability, or if we undergo a change of control, then such
shareholder’s pro rata portion of the escrow amount will be released to him; and (ii) if any of such shareholder’s employment is
terminated for any reason other than as a result of an event set forth in the preceding clause, then such shareholder’s pro rata
portion of the escrow amount will be returned to us.

     The Capitalink transaction resulted in an increase of $2,122 of additional paid-in capital resulting from the issuance of
4,000,000 shares of common stock and 966,666 vested warrants. Unearned employee stock-based compensation attributable to
unvested equity instruments amounting to $4,270 will be recognized over the vesting period, of which $3,274 was recognized
as of September 30, 2007. The 1,333,333 shares of common stock remaining in escrow have been considered outstanding as
the former Telluride shareholders are entitled to voting rights.

Critical Accounting Policies

     General. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
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and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

     Clearing Arrangements. Ladenburg does not carry accounts for customers or perform custodial functions related to
customers’ securities. Ladenburg introduces all of its customer transactions, which are not reflected in these financial
statements, to its primary clearing broker, which maintains the customers’ accounts and clears such transactions. Additionally,
the primary clearing broker provides the clearing and depository operations for Ladenburg’s proprietary securities
transactions. These activities may expose Ladenburg to off-balance-sheet risk in the event that customers do not fulfill their
obligations with the primary clearing broker, as Ladenburg has agreed to indemnify its primary clearing broker for any
resulting losses. Ladenburg continually assesses risk associated with each customer who is on margin credit and we record an
estimated loss when we believe collection from the customer is unlikely. We incurred losses from these arrangements, prior to
any recoupment from Ladenburg’s financial consultants, of $53 and $26 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

     Customer Claims, Litigation and Regulatory Matters. In the normal course of business, our operating subsidiaries have
been and continue to be the subject of civil actions and arbitrations arising out of customer complaints relating to our
activities as a broker-dealer, as an employer and as a result of other business activities. In general, the cases involve various
allegations that our employees had mishandled customer accounts. Where we believe that it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated, we have provided a liability. We accrued approximately
$358 and $483 for potential arbitration and lawsuit losses as of September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively.
However, we have in the past been assessed damages that exceeded our reserves. If we misjudged the amount of damages that
may be assessed against us from pending or threatened claims, our operating income would be reduced. Such costs may have a
material adverse effect on our future financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

     Exit or Disposal Activities. During the fourth quarter of 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities”. Under SFAS No. 146, a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity shall be recognized
and measured initially at its fair value in the period in which the liability is incurred. For operating leases, a liability for costs
that will continue to be incurred under the lease for its remaining term without economic benefit to the entity shall be
recognized and measured at its fair value when the entity ceases using the right conveyed by the lease (the “cease-use date”).
The fair value of the liability at the “cease-use date” shall be determined based on the remaining lease rentals, reduced by
estimated sublease rentals that could be reasonably obtained for the property.

     Fair Value. Securities owned and securities sold, but not yet purchased on our consolidated statements of financial
condition are carried at fair value or amounts that approximate fair value, with related unrealized gains and losses recognized
in our results of operations. The determination of fair value is fundamental to our financial condition and results of operations
and, in certain circumstances, it requires management to make complex judgments.

     Fair values are based on listed market prices, where possible. If listed market prices are not available or if the liquidation of
our positions would reasonably be expected to impact market prices, fair value is determined based on other relevant factors,
including dealer price quotations. Fair values for certain derivative contracts are derived from pricing models that consider
market and contractual prices for the underlying financial instruments or commodities, as well as time value and yield curve or
volatility factors underlying the positions.

     Pricing models and their underlying assumptions impact the amount and timing of unrealized gains and losses recognized,
and the use of different pricing models or assumptions could produce different financial results. Changes in the fixed income
and equity markets will impact our estimates of fair value in the future, potentially affecting principal trading revenues. The
illiquid nature of certain securities or debt instruments also requires a high degree of judgment in determining fair value due to
the lack of listed market prices and the potential impact of the liquidation of our position on market prices, among other
factors.

     Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets. We account for taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,”
which requires the recognition of tax benefits or expense on the temporary differences between the tax basis and book basis of
a company’s assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
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differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Deferred tax amounts at September 30, 2007, which consist principally of
the tax benefit of net operating loss carryforwards and accrued expenses, were $26,900. After consideration of all the evidence,
both positive and negative, especially the fact we sustained operating losses during 2005 and 2004, we have determined that a
valuation allowance at September 30, 2007 was necessary to fully offset the deferred tax assets based on the likelihood of
future realization. At September 30, 2007, we had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $49,000, expiring in
various years from 2015 through 2026.

     Expense Recognition of Employee Stock Options. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004),
Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”), which requires an entity to measure the cost of employee, officer and director
services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments, including stock options, based on the grant-date fair value of
the award. The cost is recognized as compensation expense over the service period, which would normally be the vesting
period of the options. We adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective transition method, which requires that
compensation cost be recorded as earned, (i) for all unvested stock options outstanding at the beginning of the first fiscal year
of adoption of SFAS No. 123R based upon the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of
SFAS No. 123 and (ii) for all share-based payments granted subsequent to the adoption, based on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. In addition, balances of unearned compensation attributable to
awards granted prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R were netted against additional paid-in capital.

Results of Operations

     The following discussion provides an assessment of our results of operations, capital resources and liquidity and should be
read in conjunction with our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in
this report. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of Ladenburg
and our other wholly-owned subsidiaries other than Investacorp.
                 
  Three months ended   Nine months ended  
  September 30,   September 30,  
  2007   2006   2007   2006  
Total revenue  $10,452  $10,179  $44,899  $32,430(2)
Total operating expenses   12,665   9,595   46,060(1)   28,400 
Operating income (loss)   (2,213)   584   (1,661)   4,030 
Net income (loss)   (2,098)   570   (1,207)(1)  3,977(2)
                 
EBITDA and other adjustments   (194)   1,197   6,188   2,391 
Add:                 

Interest income   45   28   128   147 
Income tax benefit   115   —   —   — 
Sale of NYSE membership   —   —   —   3,858 

Less:                 
Interest expense   (16)   (161)   (287)   (417)
Income tax expense   —   (14)   (46)   (53)
Depreciation and amortization   (333)   (177)   (918)   (505)
Non-cash compensation   (1,715)   (303)   (4,439)   (1,444)
Loss on extinguishment of debt.   —   —   (1,833)   — 

Net income (loss)   (2,098)   570   (1,207)   3,977 

 

(1)  Includes 1,833 loss on extinguishment of debt.
 

(2)  Includes $3,858 net gain in nine months ended September 30, 2006 on NYSE Euronext common stock, including NYSE
merger transaction.

     Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, adjusted for gains or losses on sales of assets,
non-cash compensation expense, and loss on extinguishment of debt is a key metric we use in evaluating our financial
performance. EBITDA is considered a non-GAAP financial measure as defined by Regulation G promulgated by the SEC under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. We consider EBITDA, as adjusted, important in evaluating our financial performance
on a consistent basis across various periods. Due to the significance of non-recurring items, EBITDA, as adjusted, enables our
Board of Directors and management to monitor and evaluate the business on a consistent basis. We use EBITDA, as adjusted,
as a primary measure, among others, to analyze and evaluate financial and strategic planning decisions regarding
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future operating investments and potential acquisitions. We believe that EBITDA, as adjusted, eliminates items that are not
part of our core operations, such as debt extinguishment expense, or do not involve a cash outlay, such as stock-related
compensation. EBITDA should be considered in addition to, rather than as a substitute for, pre-tax income, net income and
cash flows from operating activities.

     Third quarter 2007 EBITDA, as adjusted, was a loss $194, a decrease of $1,391 over third quarter 2006 EBITDA, as
adjusted, of $1,197. EBITDA, as adjusted, for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 was $6,188, an increase of $3,797, or
159%, over EBITDA, as adjusted, of $2,391 for the 2006 comparable period.

Three months ended September 30, 2007 versus three months ended September 30, 2006

     Our net loss for the quarter ended September 30, 2007 was $2,098 compared to net income of $570 for the quarter ended
September 30, 2006 primarily due to the effect of non-cash compensation expense. The net loss for the 2007 period includes
$1,715 of non-cash compensation expense. The net income for the 2006 period includes $303 of non-cash compensation
expense.

     Our total revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2007 increased $273, or 3%, from the 2006 period primarily as
a result of increased commissions of $1,966, increased syndication and underwriting revenue of $802 and increased other
revenues of $205, partially offset by decreased principal transactions of $1,164 and decreased investment banking fees of
$1,505.

     Excluding non-cash compensation expense of $1,715 in 2007and $303 in 2006, our total expenses increased $1,658, or
18%, from the 2006 period primarily as a result of increased compensation and benefits of $895, increased other expense of
$614, increased brokerage, communication and clearance fees of $261 and increased depreciation and amortization of $156.
These increased expenses were partially offset by decreased interest expense of $145 and decreased professional services of
$132.

     The $1,966 (67%) increase in commissions revenue primarily resulted from favorable market conditions and an increase in
the average institutional sales force headcount from 7 in 2006 to 12 in 2007.

     The $1,164 (39%) decrease in net principal transactions revenue was primarily the result of a decrease from the prior year
period in sales credits from a reduction in Ladenburg’s participation in initial and secondary public offerings, including those
for which Ladenburg was a lead manager or co-manager of the underwriting or was part of the selling group.

     The $1,505 (64%) decrease in investment banking fees was primarily the result of a decrease in the size of Ladenburg’s
allocation of public offerings where Ladenburg acted as either a lead or co-manager in the 2007 period. We expect investment
banking fees to increase significantly in the fourth quarter of 2007 due to the backlog of offerings, some of which were
delayed from the third quarter to the fourth quarter due to market conditions.

     The $802 (275%) increase in syndications and underwritings was primarily the result of lower underwriting expenses in the
2007 period as compared to our estimates. Additionally in the 2006 period we had higher than expected underwriting expense
as compared to our estimates. Underwriting revenue is comprised of gross underwriting fees net of expenses such as
stabilization costs, legal and other costs.

     The $205 (69%) increase in other revenues is attributed to $70 in rebates paid to two of our broker-dealer subsidiaries, due
to the merger of the National Association of Securities Dealers and the NYSE, $65 for research related commissions in 2007
and an increase of $70 for service fees charged on commission transactions in 2007 which is the result of an increase in agency
transactions in the 2007 period.

     The $895 (14%) increase in compensation and benefits expense is primarily attributable to a $306 increase in producers’
compensation, $264 increase in salaries and bonuses, $192 increase in employee benefits and employer taxes and $133
representing three months amortization of $667 cash held in escrow for former Telluride shareholders (see Note 13,
“Acquisitions — Capitalink” to our condensed consolidated financial statements). The increase in producers’ compensation of
$306 is the result of the addition of research and performance driven incentives of $238 and $68, respectively, attributable to
increased revenues in the 2007 period. The increase in salaries and bonuses is the result of the average headcount for salaried
employees
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increasing by 24 in 2007. We expect compensation and benefits expense to increase significantly in the fourth quarter due to
the anticipated increased investment banking revenue.

     The $1,412 (466%) increase in non-cash compensation is primarily a result of an increase of $854 for the amortization of
unearned compensation for our warrants and common stock held in escrow for the principal shareholders of Capitalink, which
is being amortized over 15 months beginning on October 18, 2006, the date of acquisition, an increase in employee
compensation expense of $659 attributable to option grants to employees and directors, offset by a decrease of $77 in the
amortization of unearned compensation from stock issued to employees in 2005 at below market prices and a decrease of $24
for options granted to the members of our former advisory board and consultants.

     The $261 (39%) increase in brokerage, communication and clearance fee expense is primarily attributable to an increase in
clearing and execution charges of $117 which corresponds to the increase in institutional transactions, a $90 cost associated to
the addition of a third party trading platform and a $49 increase in news and quotes subscriptions attributable to new
personnel in the institutional and investment banking departments.

     The $132 (16%) decrease in professional service expense during the 2007 period is primarily due to the large accrued
Sarbanes-Oxley related expenses in the 2006 period, when we became an accelerated filer. We expect professional service
expense to fluctuate depending on the level of corporate development and litigation activity.

     Interest expense decreased to $16 in the 2007 period from $161 in the 2006 period as a result of the debt exchange
described herein. We expect interest expense to increase significantly in future periods due to the debt incurred in connection
with the Investacorp acquisition.

     The $614 (86%) increase in other expense is primarily attributable to $158 write-off of uncollectable receivables, a $103
increase in final arbitration settlements in excess of reserve amounts, and a $160 increase in travel and entertainment and
office expense due to the addition of investment bankers and acquisition-related activity. Other expense in the 2006 period
was reduced by an arbitration settlement for $175 less than the reserved amount.

     Depreciation and amortization expense increased $156 in the 2007 period from the 2006 period, primarily from increased
amortization of intangible assets of $271 offset by decreased depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of leasehold
improvements. We expect depreciation and amortization expense to increase in future quarters as a result of the Investacorp
acquisition.

     We had an income tax benefit of $115 for the three months ended September 30, 2007 as compared to income tax expense
of $14 for the three months ended September 30, 2006, due to the net loss during the 2007 period. After consideration of all
the evidence, both positive and negative, especially the fact we have sustained operating losses during 2005 and 2004,
management has determined that a valuation allowance at September 30, 2007 was necessary to fully offset the deferred tax
assets based on the likelihood of future realization. The income tax rate for the 2006 period does not bear a customary
relationship to the effective tax rate primarily as a result of recognized tax benefits from net operating loss carryforwards from
prior years, utilized to offset taxable income for the three months ended September 30, 2006. In addition, the income tax rate
for the 2007 period does not bear a customary relationship to the effective tax rate as a result of the increase in the valuation
allowance.

     Nine months ended September 30, 2007 versus nine months ended September 30, 2006

     Our net loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 was $1,207 compared to net income of $3,977 for the nine
months ended September 30, 2006. The net loss for the 2007 period includes a $1,833 loss on extinguishment of debt and
$4,439 of non-cash compensation expense. The net income for the 2006 period includes a gain of $4,859 from the NYSE
merger offset by losses of $1,001 on the sale and decline in fair value of NYSE Euronext common stock and $1,444 of non-
cash compensation expense.

     Our total revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 increased $12,469, or 38%, from the 2006 period
primarily as a result of increased principal transactions of $8,848, increased investment banking fees of $4,242, increased
syndications and underwritings of $1,817, increased agency commissions of $1,218
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and increased investment advisory fees of $240 offset by net revenues of $3,858 related to NYSE Euronext common stock,
including the NYSE merger transaction, in 2006.

     Excluding non-cash compensation expense of $4,439 in 2007 and $1,444 in 2006 and loss on extinguishment of debt of
$1,833 in 2007, our expenses increased $12,832, or 48%, from the 2006 period primarily as a result of an increase in
compensation and benefits of $9,990, an increase in other expense of $1,252, an increase in professional fees of $972, an
increase in brokerage, communication and clearance fees of $702 and an increase in depreciation and amortization of $413,
offset by a decrease in rent and occupancy expense of $367.

     The $8,848 (159%) increase in net principal transactions revenue was primarily the result of increased institutional sales
credits from greater participation in initial and secondary public offerings, including those for which Ladenburg was a lead
manager or co-manager of the underwriting or was part of the selling group.

     The $4,242 (112%) increase in investment banking fees was primarily the result of an increase in the number of public
offerings where Ladenburg acted as either a lead or co-manager from 12 offerings in 2006 to 22 offerings in 2007, and an
increase in advisory and valuation work resulting from the addition of the Capitalink investment banking group.

     The $1,817 (98%) increase in syndications and underwritings revenue was primarily the result of an increase in the number
and size of underwriting transactions in the 2007 period. In 2007, Ladenburg participated in 31 selling groups compared to 16
in 2006 and Ladenburg underwrote 39 offerings in 2007 compared to 26 in 2006.

     The $9,990 (55%) increase in compensation and benefits expense was primarily due to an $8,246 increase in producers’
compensation, $909 increase in salaries and bonuses, $435 increase in employee benefits and employer taxes, and $400
representing nine months amortization of $667cash held in escrow for former Telluride shareholders (see Note 13,
“Acquisitions — Capitalink” to our condensed consolidated financial statements). The increase in producers’ compensation of
$8,246 is the result of the addition of research and performance driven incentives of $579 and $7,667 attributable to increased
revenues in 2007. The increase in salaries and bonuses are the result of the average headcount for salaried employees
increasing by 20 in 2007.

     The $2,995 (207%) increase in non-cash compensation expense is primarily a result of an increase of $2,451 for the
amortization of unearned compensation for our warrants and common stock held in escrow for the principal shareholders of
Capitalink which is being amortized over 15 months beginning on October 18, 2006, the date of acquisition, an increase in
employee compensation expense of $1,085 attributable to option grants to employees and directors, an increase of $118 for
options granted to the members of our former advisory board and consultants. These amounts were offset by a $659 decrease in
the amortization of unearned compensation from stock issued to employees in 2005 at below market prices.

     The $702 (34%) increase in brokerage, communication and clearance fee expense is primarily attributable to an increase in
clearing and execution charges of $383 which corresponds to the increase in institutional transactions, a $245 cost associated
with the addition of a third-party trading platform and increased news and quotes subscriptions of $74 attributable to new
institutional sales and investment banking personnel.

     The $972 (57%) increase in professional services expense during the 2007 period is primarily due to an increase in legal,
audit and consulting fees and corporate development activities.

     Interest expense decreased to $287 in the 2007 period from $417 in the 2006 period as a result of the debt exchange
described herein. We expect interest expense to increase significantly in future periods due to the debt incurred in connection
with the Investacorp acquisition.

     Depreciation and amortization expense increased $413 in the 2007 period from the 2006 period, primarily from increased
amortization of intangible assets of $693 offset by decreased depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of leasehold
improvements of $280.

     The $1,252 (50%) increase in other expense is primarily due to a $511 increase in travel and entertainment and office
expense due to the addition of investment bankers, $175 increase in licenses, dues and regulatory
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filings, $141 increase in final arbitral settlements, $134 increase in stock and bond error, and a $123 increase in advertising
and insurance.

     Income tax expense was $46 and $53 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. After
consideration of all the evidence, both positive and negative, especially the fact we have sustained operating losses during
2005 and 2004, management has determined that a valuation allowance at September 30, 2007 was necessary to fully offset
the deferred tax assets based on the likelihood of future realization. The income tax rate for the 2007 and 2006 periods does
not bear a customary relationship to effective tax rates primarily as a result of the increase in the valuation allowance in the
2007 period and recognized tax benefits from net operating loss carryforwards from prior years utilized to offset taxable
income in the 2006 period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

     Approximately 71.6% of total assets at September 30, 2007 consisted of cash and cash equivalents, securities owned and
receivable from our clearing broker, all of which fluctuate, depending upon the levels of customer business and trading
activity. Receivables from broker-dealers, which are primarily from our primary clearing broker, turn over rapidly. As a
securities dealer, we may carry significant levels of securities inventories to meet customer needs. A relatively small
percentage of our total assets are fixed. The total assets or the individual components of total assets may vary significantly
from period to period because of changes relating to economic and market conditions, and proprietary trading strategies.

     Ladenburg is subject to the net capital rules of the SEC and the Commodities Futures Trading Commission. Therefore, it is
subject to certain restrictions on the use of capital and its related liquidity. At September 30, 2007, Ladenburg’s regulatory net
capital, as defined, of $21,406 exceeded its minimum capital requirement of $500 by $20,906. Failure to maintain the required
net capital may subject Ladenburg to suspension or expulsion by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, the SEC and
other regulatory bodies and ultimately may require its liquidation. The net capital rule also prohibits the payment of
dividends, redemption of stock and prepayment or payment of principal of subordinated indebtedness if net capital, after
giving effect to the payment, redemption or prepayment, would be less than specified percentages of the minimum net capital
requirement. Compliance with the net capital rule could limit the operations of Ladenburg that requires the intensive use of
capital, such as underwriting and trading activities, and also could restrict our ability to withdraw capital from it, which in
turn, could limit our ability to pay dividends and repay and service any debt we may assume or incur. Ladenburg, as guarantor
of its customer accounts to its primary clearing broker, is exposed to off-balance-sheet risks in the event that its customers do
not fulfill their obligations with the clearing broker. In addition, to the extent Ladenburg maintains a short position in certain
securities, it is exposed to a future off-balance-sheet market risk, since its ultimate obligation may exceed the amount
recognized in the financial statements.

     Our primary sources of liquidity include our cash flows from operations, the sale of our securities and other financing
activities, which includes the Frost Gamma credit agreement.

     Net cash flows provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 were $707 as compared to
$6,615 used in the 2006 period.

     Net cash flows used in investing activities amounted to $395 and $335 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively. These investing activities relate principally to the purchase of customer relationships, leasehold
improvements and enhancements to computer equipment.

     Net cash flows provided by financing activities amounted to $694 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007,
reflecting a decrease in restricted assets of $1,083, $359 provided by the issuance of our common stock through our Employee
Stock Purchase Plan, $857 provided by the exercise of employee stock options, $1,122 used to pay withholding taxes related
to the exercise of options and $483 used to repurchase shares for retirement under our stock repurchase plan. Net cash flows
provided by financing activities amounted to $4,154 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006, reflecting $3,675 of cash
provided by our private equity offering, $215 provided by the issuance of our common stock through our Employee Stock
Purchase Plan and $334 provided by the exercise of stock options, net of an increase in restricted assets of $70.

27



Table of Contents

     At September 30, 2007, we are obligated under several non-cancelable lease agreements for office space, which provide for
future minimum lease payments aggregating approximately $47,000 through 2015, exclusive of escalation charges. We have
subleased vacant space under subleases which entitle us to receive rents aggregating approximately $31,000 through such
date. In addition, one of the leases obligates us to occupy additional space at the landlord’s option, which may result in
aggregate additional lease payments of up to $117 through June 2015. We have assumed additional lease obligations as a
result of the Investacorp acquisition.

     On March 27, 2002, we borrowed $2,500 from New Valley, our former parent. On July 16, 2002, we borrowed an additional
$2,500 from New Valley (collectively with the March 2002 loan, the “2002 Loans”). In November 2002, New Valley agreed in
connection with the loans to us from an affiliate of our clearing broker to extend the maturity of the 2002 Loans to
December 31, 2006. In December 2006, New Valley agreed to extend the maturity of the 2002 Loans to March 31, 2007.

     In February 2007, we entered into a debt exchange agreement with New Valley to retire our remaining outstanding
indebtedness. Under the agreement, New Valley agreed to exchange the principal amount of our notes held by New Valley, for
shares of our common stock at an exchange price of $1.80 per share, representing the average closing price of our common
stock for the 30 trading days ending on the date of the agreement.

     On June 29, 2007 our shareholders approved the debt exchange, at which time we paid accrued interest of $1,732 to New
Valley and we issued 2,777,778 shares in exchange for the retirement of the $5,000 principal amount of the notes. As a result,
we recognized a $1,833 loss on extinguishment of debt representing the excess of the quoted market value of the 2,777,778
shares of stock at the date of the debt exchange agreement ($2.46 per share) over the carrying amount of the notes.

     In March 2007, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to 2,500,000 shares of our common stock from time to
time on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions depending on market conditions. The repurchase program will
be funded using approximately 15% of our EBITDA, as adjusted. As of September 30, 2007, 264,990 shares had been
repurchased under the program.

     As discussed elsewhere herein, in connection with the Investacorp acquisition, we entered into the Frost Gamma credit
agreement and issued the Zwigard note.

Market Risk

     Market risk generally represents the risk of loss that may result from the potential change in the value of a financial
instrument as a result of fluctuations in interest and currency exchange rates, equity and commodity prices, changes in the
implied volatility of interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and commodity prices and also changes in the credit ratings
of either the issuer or its related country of origin. Market risk is inherent to both derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments, and accordingly, the scope of our market risk management procedures extends beyond derivatives to include all
market risk sensitive financial instruments.

     Current and proposed underwriting, corporate finance, merchant banking and other commitments are subject to due
diligence reviews by our senior management, as well as professionals in the appropriate business and support units involved.
Credit risk related to various financing activities is reduced by the industry practice of obtaining and maintaining collateral.
We monitor our exposure to counterparty risk through the use of credit exposure information, the monitoring of collateral
values and the establishment of credit limits.

     We maintain inventories of trading securities. At September 30, 2007, the fair market value of our inventories was $1,831 in
long positions and $1,525 in short positions. Our short positions are primarily the result of arbitrage positions held, in which
we are long a unit and short the components of that unit. We performed an entity-wide analysis of our financial instruments
and assessed the related risk. Based on this analysis, we believe the market risk associated with our financial instruments at
September 30, 2007 will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

     We and our representatives may from time to time make oral or written “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including any statements that may be contained in the foregoing
discussion in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, in this report and in
other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and in our reports to shareholders, which reflect our expectations
or beliefs with respect to future events and financial performance. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks
and uncertainties and, in connection with the “safe-harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act, we have
identified under “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, as amended, and in
this report important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking
statement made by or on behalf of us.

     Results actually achieved may differ materially from expected results included in these forward-looking statements as a
result of these or other factors. Due to such uncertainties and risks, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date on which such statements are made. We do not undertake to
update any forward-looking statement that may be made from time to time by or on behalf of us. Further, readers should keep
in mind that our quarterly revenues and profits can fluctuate materially depending on many factors, including the number, size
and timing of completed offerings and other transactions. Accordingly, our revenues and profits in any particular quarter may
not be indicative of future results.

Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

     The information under the caption “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Market Risk” is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

     Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report, and, based on that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have
concluded that these controls and procedures are effective. There were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.

     Disclosure controls and procedures are our controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to its
management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding disclosure.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

     See Note 6 to our condensed consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

     There are no material changes from the risk factors set forth in Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2006, except for the changes set forth below. Please refer to that section and the
information below for disclosures regarding the risks and uncertainties related to our business.

Our business is dependent on fees generated from the distribution of financial products

An important portion of our revenues are derived from fees generated from the distribution of financial products such as
mutual funds and variable annuities by the Investacorp registered representatives. Changes in the structure or amount of the
fees paid by the sponsors of these products could directly affect our revenues and profits.

Misconduct by our employees and independent registered representatives is difficult to detect and deter and could harm
our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Misconduct by our employees and independent registered representatives could result in violations of law by us, regulatory
sanctions and/or serious reputational or financial harm. Misconduct could include:

 •  binding us to transactions that exceed authorized limits;
 

 •  hiding unauthorized or unsuccessful activities resulting in unknown and unmanaged risks or losses;
 

 •  improperly using or disclosing confidential information;
 

 •  recommending transactions that are not suitable;
 

 •  engaging in fraudulent or otherwise improper activity;
 

 •  engaging in unauthorized or excessive trading to the detriment of customers; or
 

 •  otherwise not complying with laws or our control procedures.

We cannot always deter misconduct by our employees and independent registered representatives, and the precautions we take
to prevent and detect this activity may not be effective in all cases. Prevention and detection among our independent
registered representatives, who are not employees of our company and tend to be located in small, decentralized offices,
presents additional challenges. We also cannot assure that misconduct by our employees and independent registered
representatives will not lead to a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Our financial leverage may impair our ability to obtain financing and limits cash flow available for operations.

Our indebtedness may:

 •  limit our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, regulatory capital requirements, acquisitions or
general corporate purposes;

 

 •  require us to dedicate a substantial portion of cash flows from operations to the payment of principal and interest on
our indebtedness, resulting in less cash available for operations and other purposes; and

 

 •  increase our vulnerability to downturns in our business or in general economic conditions.
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     Our ability to satisfy our obligations and to reduce our total debt depends on our future operating performance and
prospects. Our future operating performance is subject to many factors, including economic, financial and competitive factors,
which may be beyond our control. As a result, we may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow, and future financings may
not be available to provide sufficient net proceeds, to meet these obligations.

Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

     During the quarter ended September 30, 2007, we did not issue or sell any of our securities that were not registered under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

     Our purchases of our common stock during the three months ended September 30, 2007 were as follows:
                 
          Total Number   Maximum Number  
          of Shares   of Shares that  
  Total       Purchased as   May Yet Be  
  Number of   Average   Part of Publicly   Purchased Under  
  Shares   Price Paid  Announced Plans  the Plans  
Period  Purchased   Per Share   or Programs   or Programs  
As of June 30, 2007   —   —   —   2,500,000(2)
July 1 to July 31, 2007   71,350(1) $ 2.26   —   — 
August 1 to August 31, 2007   —   —   —   — 
September 1 to September 30, 2007   264,990   1.82   264,990   264,990 
Total   336,340  $ 1.95   264.990   2,235,010 

 

(1)  Represents delivery of shares to us in payment of exercise price in connection with exercise of employee stock options for
250,000 shares during the third quarter of 2007. In addition, during the three months ended September 30, 2007, we
acquired 521,711 shares from an employee in satisfaction of withholding taxes on exercise of options.

 

(2)  In March 2007, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to 2,500,000 shares of our common stock from time
to time on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions depending on market conditions. The repurchase
program will be funded using approximately 15% of our EBITDA, as adjusted. As of September 30, 2007, 264,990 shares
had been repurchased under the program.
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Item 6. EXHIBITS

3.2  Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
dated September 20, 2007 and filed with the SEC on September 21, 2007).

 

4.1  Credit Agreement, dated as of October 19, 2007, by and between Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc. and Frost
Gamma Investments Trust, including the form of Note thereunder (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated October 19, 2007 and filed with the SEC on October 22, 2007).

 

4.2  Non-Negotiable Promissory Note, dated as of October 19, 2007, made by Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc. in
favor of Bruce A. Zwigard (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
October 19, 2007 and filed with the SEC on October 22, 2007).

 

4.3  Pledge Agreement, dated as of October 19, 2007, by and between Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc. and Bruce
A. Zwigard (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated October 19,
2007 and filed with the SEC on October 22, 2007).

 

10.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 19, 2007, by and among Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc.,
the Investacorp Companies, the VIA Companies, Bruce A. Zwigard and the Bruce A. Zwigard Grantor Retained Annuity
Trust dated June 20, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
dated October 19, 2007 and filed with the SEC on October 22, 2007).

 

10.2 Non-Plan Option Agreement, dated as of October 19, 2007, by and between Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc.
and Bruce A. Zwigard (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
October 19, 2007 and filed with the SEC on October 22, 2007).

 

10.3 Warrant, dated as of October 19, 2007, issued to Frost Gamma Investments Trust pursuant to Credit Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated October 19, 2007 and
filed with the SEC on October 22, 2007).

 

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer, Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

 

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer, Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

 

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer, Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

 

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer, Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
     
 LADENBURG THALMANN FINANCIAL

SERVICES INC.

(Registrant)

 

 

Date: November 8, 2007 By: /s/ Diane Chillemi   
 Diane Chillemi  

 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Duly Authorized Officer and
Chief Accounting Officer) 
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EXHIBIT 31.1

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Richard J. Lampen, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

     (a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

     (b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

     (c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

     (d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

     (a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

     (b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 8, 2007
     
   
 /s/ Richard J. Lampen   
 Richard J. Lampen  

 
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) 

 

 





 

     

EXHIBIT 31.2

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Diane Chillemi, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

     (a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

     (b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

     (c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

     (d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

     (a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

     (b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 8, 2007
     
   
 /s/ Diane Chillemi   
 Diane Chillemi  

 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer) 

 

 





 

     

EXHIBIT 32.1

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

     In connection with the Quarterly Report of Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for
the period ended September 30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”),
I, Richard J. Lampen, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

 1.  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

 2.  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

     
   
November 8, 2007 /s/ Richard J. Lampen   
 Richard J. Lampen  

 
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) 

 

 





 

     

EXHIBIT 32.2

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

     In connection with the Quarterly Report of Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for
the period ended September 30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”),
I, Diane Chillemi, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

 1.  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

 2.  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

     
   
November 8, 2007 /s/ Diane Chillemi   
 Diane Chillemi  

 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer) 
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